
  Special Called Chester County Transportation Meeting March 15th, 2021. 

 CHESTER COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 

Monday, March 15th, 2021 at 5:30 PM
R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex

 1476 J A Cochran Bypass, Council Chambers 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Approval of minutes
a. January 19th, 2020 CCTC Minutes. Pg. 2

3. Old Business
a. Update on Baseball Alley-Rick Craps, Dennis Corp.

b. Update on JA Cochran Bypass and Ashford Street Sidewalk installation -Rick Craps, Dennis Corp.

c. Approval of obligated FEMA funds to mitigate Britt Lane. Rick Craps, Dennis Corp. Pg. 3

d. Update to add sidewalks to Douglas Circle and Washington Street in Great Falls-Bill Coleman, ICE. Pg. 4

4. New Business
a. Approval of bid for resurfacing Shirley Road in the amount of $497,168.00-Bill Coleman, ICE Pg. 18

b. Approval of bid for Deer Branch Culvert in the amount of $ 45,221.50-Rick Craps, Dennis Corp. Pg. 20

c. Discuss truck traffic on Canal Road in Catawba, SC.-Councilman Jordan.

5. Adjourn



 

         Special Called Chester County Transportation Meeting January 19th, 2021                        
 

 

        CHESTER COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE  
                  Tuesday, January 19th, 2021 at 5:15 PM 
 R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
          1476 J A Cochran Bypass, Council Chambers  
      

                         Minutes  

 

Present: Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Brad Jordan, 

Councilman Mike Vaughn, Councilwoman Mary Guy, Councilman Pete Wilson, Clerk to Council Karen Lee 

and County Attorney Joanie Winters. Rules of Procedure Section 2-59- and 60 were suspended.     
Absent: Councilman William Killian. 

    
1. Call to Order-Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick called the meeting to order.  

2.         Approval of minutes 

             a.  October 19th, 2020 Special Called CCTC Minutes. 
  Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 5-0 to approve. 
 

b.  October 29th, 2020 CCTC Workshop Minutes. 
Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 

  3. Old Business 

 a.  Update on Baseball Alley-Matt Hines. 
Ricky Crapp with the Dennis Corporation spoke on behalf of Matt Hines. He stated they were meeting 
with Lineberger Construction in the morning, they had to adjust grades to get around on site utilities. 
They plan to shift the parking and driveway over some and should be finished in three or four weeks.  
 

 b.  Update on JA Cochran Bypass and Ashford Street Sidewalk Installation -Matt Hines. 
Ricky Crapp stated there were a few changes Mr. Gamble with SCDOT wanted to see made, changes 
were made to the plan and sent back to SCDOT and were approved. They were currently waiting on a 
permit from SCDOT to be issued this week. They plan to start on Ashford Street first and should be done 
in ninety days.  
 

 c.  Cost estimates to add sidewalks to Douglas Circle in Great Falls-Bill Coleman. 
 Mr. Coleman stated the cost to add sidewalks would be an estimate of $ 220,000 dollars. Councilman  

Vaughn stated the circle was used for exercise by residents. Mr. Coleman said the sidewalks would be  
on the outside of the circle. They did not include the price for easement research in the estimate, since 
it was a state road the easement was probably already in place. Councilman Wilson said he would want 
to see the drawings to have a better understanding of exactly how the sidewalks would look, the length 
and width of the sidewalks along with a map. Mr. Coleman stated he could send the information to Dr. 
Frederick. Dr. Frederick said a special called transportation meeting could be held fifteen minutes before 
the next regular called meeting to go over the information Mr. Coleman provides.  
 



 

         Special Called Chester County Transportation Meeting January 19th, 2021                        
 

 
 d.  Update on Deerbranch Road. Councilman Vaughn.  

Councilman Vaughn said he had changed his mind on closing the road, after talking to some of the 
residents closing the road would be a negative impact on their property values. He wants to have the 
road repaired.  Ed Darby, of EMA said FEMA would reimburse the county seventy-five percent of the cost 
as long as the FEMA requirements were met. Councilman Vaughn motioned to authorize the work on 
Deerbranch Road to repair it back to the way it was, second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 

  4. New Business  

 a. Approval of bid for C-Fund Roads to Palmetto Corporation of Conway in the amount of  
$ 1,007,920.70. Bill Coleman stated the company had the low bid and was a reputable contractor, some 
of the roads would be reclaimed and some patched and paved. The name of the roads was Joe Caldwell, 
Debruhl, JBass, Crow’s Nest, Southpaw, Coldstream, Bernice Lane and Murdock Road. Vice Chairman 
Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 5-0 to approve.  

 
 b. Discuss CCTC-SCDOT partnership- Bill Coleman    
 Vice Chairman Branham motioned to enter into partnership with SCDOT, second by Councilman Jordan. 
 Vote 5-0 to approve.     
       
 c. Request to Reimburse the Road Department for Road Maintenance from September 2020 to  
               December 2020 in the amount of $17,461.94 dollars. 
 Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 
 d. Request to Reimburse the Recycling Department for Sign Material from November 2020 to  
              December 2020 in the amount of $3106.96. 
              Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 
  5.         Adjourn 
 Councilwoman Guy motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 5-0 to adjourn. 

 

 

 Time: 5: 50 pm 



Prepared by: Date: 9/22/2020
Page: 1 of 1

Item No. Description Quantity Units Unit Price Total Price

1 Mobilization 1 LS $2,712.40 $2,712
2 Bonds and Insurance 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500
3 Construction Stakes, Lines & Grades 1 EA $3,500.00 $3,500
4 Traffic Control 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000
5 Removal & Disposal of Existing Asphalt Pavement 120 SY $15.00 $1,800
6 24" Smooth Wall Pipe 40 LF $36.00 $1,440
7 Turf Reinforcing Mat 120 SY $6.50 $780
8 Full Depth Asphalt Pavement Patching 6" Unif. 120 SY $55.00 $6,600
9 Borrow Excavation 100 CY $15.00 $1,500

Total Cost: $22,832
15% Contingency: $3,425
Base Grand Total: $26,257

Deductions from Base

6 24" Smooth Wall Pipe -40 LF 36.00 -$1,440
7 Turf Reinforcing Mat -120 SY 6.50 -$780
9 Borrow Excavation -100 CY 15.00 -$1,500

Total: -$3,720
Additions to Base

6A 30" Smooth Wall Pipe 60 LF $65.00 $3,900
7A Rip-Rap (Class A) 28 TON $150.00 $4,200
7B Geotextile for Erosion Control under Riprap Class 2 Type C 32 SY $7.00 $224
9A Borrow Excavation 15 CY $100.00 $1,500
10A NO. 57 Stone For Backfill 15 TON $60.00 $900

Total: $10,724

Total Cost: $29,836
15% Contingency: $4,475

Mitigation Grand Total: $34,312

Additional Costs for Mitigation

Chester County Britt Lane Pipe Washout
Construction Cost Estimate

As of:  09/22/20

Base (Repair to Previous Condition)













































 

Chester County Council Meeting March 15th, 2021                                                                1 
 

  CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 
               R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                                              1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 
                                                  Monday, March 15th, 2021 at 6:00 PM 
 
                        Interim Supervisor Dr. Wylie Frederick Presiding 
  
                                                               Agenda   
 
 
1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation  

3. Approval of Minutes  
   a. Approval of March 1st, 2021 Council Minutes. 

4. Citizen Comments 

5. Public Hearing 

   a. Needs and Assessment Hearing. 
 

6. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations 

   a.  Needs and Assessment Hearing-Grazier Rhea, Catawba Regional Council of Government. 
 

b. 2021-7 Resolution Declaring Project Status Under The 2014 Capital Project Sales and Use Tax Referendum    
and The County’s Intention to Allocate the Remaining Funds; And Other Related Matters.  
 

7. Old Business   
   a. Heart and Soul of Fort Lawn -Mick Harrington. 
 
   b. FROM CCTC: 

                     1.   Approval to add sidewalks to Douglas Circle and Washington Street in Great Falls. 

         2.   Approval of bid for Deer Branch Culvert in the amount of $ 45,221.50.  

         3.   Approval of bid for Resurfacing Shirley Road in the amount of $497,168.00. 

         4.   Approval of obligated FEMA funds to mitigate Britt Lane. 

         5.   Approval to add signage to Canal Road. 
 
    c. February Litter and Litter Enforcement Update. Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick. 
 
8. New Business 

   a. Radio Committee Appointee Ratification. -Doug McMurray. 

   b. E911 recorder purchase approval. - Doug McMurray. 

   c. Discussion regarding E911 changes. -Doug McMurray. 

   d. Council to authorize the Sheriff’s Office to apply for SC Department of Public Safety Grant for Body- 
      Worn Cameras with no match in the amount of $67,967.49 dollars. - Sheriff Dorsey. 



 

Chester County Council Meeting March 15th, 2021                                                                2 
 

 
   e.  Council to authorize the Sheriff’s Office to apply for JAG Grant for License Plate Reading Cameras in  
       the amount of $250,000 with a ten percent match. -Sheriff Dorsey. 
 
   g.  Council to authorize the Sheriff’s Office to apply for JAG Grant for Crime Scene Equipment & Training  
        in the amount of $ 285,771 with a ten percent match. -Sheriff Dorsey. 
 
   h.  Council to authorize the Sheriff’s Office to apply for JAG Grant for Safety Equipment for Detention  
        officers in the amount of $100,000 with a ten percent match. -Sheriff Dorsey. 
 
   i.  Council to authorize the Sheriff’s Office to apply for Project Safe Neighborhoods Grant License Plate  
       Reading Cameras in the amount of $250,000 with no match. -Sheriff Dorsey. 
 
   j.  Council to authorize the Sheriff’s Office to receive Grant Funds from Palmetto Citizens Against Sexual 
       Assault. -Sheriff Dorsey. 
    
   k. Request to provide $3400 dollars from the local ATAX fund to the Flopeye Fish Festival for Fireworks- 
       Councilman Vaughn.  
 

9. Boards and Commissions  
   a. Appointment to the Hazel Pittman Board. -Councilman Vaughn.  

   b. Resignation from the Fort Lawn Fire Protection Board. - Councilman Jordan.  

                 c. Re-appointment to Catawba Regional Council of Governments. -County Council.  

    d. Appointment to the Radio Users Advisory Committee- Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick.  

10. Executive Session 
   a. Discuss a contractual matter regarding County Property -Attorney Winters. 

   b. Receive legal advice regarding State of Emergency-Attorney Winters. 

   c. Receive legal advice regarding Chester County Airport-Attorney Winters. 

   d. Receive legal advice regarding Economic Development- Attorney Winters.  

11. Council Actions Following Executive Session  
   a. Action taken regarding a contractual matter of County Property.   

   b. Action taken regarding legal advice for the State of Emergency. 

   c. Action taken regarding legal advice on the Chester County Airport.  

   d. Action taken regarding legal advice for Economic Development.  

12. Council Comments 

13. Adjourn 

 
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing 
Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester 
County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
     ** * PUB LI C NOT I CE* **    

          Any citizen who wishes to make a public comment at the County Council meetings can do so in the following ways:  

1. You may submit your comments in writing to County Council by emailing Karen Lee, klee@chestercounty.org.  

mailto:klee@chestercounty.org


 

Chester County Council Meeting March 15th, 2021                                                                3 
 

2. You may submit your comments by mail: Chester County Clerk to Council, Karen Lee, PO Box 580, Chester, SC 29706.  

3. Anyone who wishes to appear in person before Council must register with the Chester County Clerk to Council by phone 
803-377-7852 or by email at klee@chestercounty.org no later than 10:00 am on the day of the Council meeting. Such 
appearance will be limited to one (1) person to be permitted to enter the building while maintaining social distancing. The 
Clerk will confirm the appointment back to the requestor. A County employee will be on hand to open the back door of the 
Government Complex at the registered time. The individual may appear before Council for no more than three (3) minutes 
and will be required to leave the building immediately following their address to Council. Groups of presenters will not be 
permitted at this time, nor will individuals who have not registered by the deadline. All rules of social distancing as 
recommended by the CDC and the etiquette procedures of the County Council must be followed. Chester County Council 
remains committed and receptive to the comments of the citizens of Chester County and while the Council does not like 
these restrictions, they are being done in the interest of everyone’s health.      

Guidelines for Addressing Council 

   Citizens Comments: 

• Each citizen will be limited to three minutes. 
 
Public Hearings: 

• Each speaker will be limited to three-minutes. 
When introduced: 

• Approach the podium, state your name and address. 
• Speak loudly and clearly making sure that the microphone is not obstructed. 
• Do not address the audience – direct all comments to Council. 
• Do not approach the Council table unless directed. 

 

Anyone addressing Council will be called out of order if you: 

• Use profanity. 
• Stray from the subject. 
• Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council. 

 

 

mailto:klee@chestercounty.org


Chester County Council Minutes March 1st, 2021                                                              1 
 

CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MINUTES 
               R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                                              1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 
                                                  Monday, March 1st, 2021 at 6:00 PM 
         
Present:  Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Brad Jordan, 
Councilman Mike Vaughn, Councilwoman Mary Guy, Councilman William Killian, Councilman Pete Wilson, 
Clerk to Council Karen Lee and County Attorney Joanie Winters.  Rules of Procedure Section 2-59 and 60 were 
suspended. 

 
1. Call to Order- Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick called the meeting to order. 

  2.        Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation Pledge was recited in unison; Councilwoman Guy gave the  
             invocation. 

3.        Approval of Minutes- February 16th, 2021 Council Minutes.  
 Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
4.        Citizen Comments 
 Michael McLain, 5754 Old 21 Road, Fort Lawn SC voiced his concerns regarding a manufacture possibly 
            moving across the street from his property and felt like it would lower the value of his home along with  
            possible noise and lights coming from the facility.  
 
 Roxann James, 3007 Steele Village Rd, Rock Hill SC voiced her concerns regarding the 2014 capital  
           project sales tax.  
 
5. Public Hearing-None 

 
6. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations-None 

 
7. Old Business   

a. Approval of Sharp back up service multi-year contract in the amount of $79,704 dollars.  
    David Schuelke.  Councilman Jordan motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman Branham. 
    Vote 6-0 to approve.  

8. New Business-None 

9. Boards and Commissions  

a. Appointment to the Hazel Pittman Board- Councilman Wilson. 
    Councilman Wilson motioned to appoint Tommy Martin, second by Councilman Vaughn. 
    Vote 6-0 to approve.   
 
b. Appointment to the Rural Fire Commission- Vice Chairman Branham.   
    Vice Chairman Branham motioned to appoint Eugene Hudson, second by Councilman Jordan. 
    Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 



Chester County Council Minutes March 1st, 2021   2 

c. Resignation from the Hazel Pittman Board- Councilman Vaughn.
Councilman Vaughn motioned to accept Marvin Keith Black’s resignation, second by Councilman
Wilson. Vote 6-0 to approve.

d. Appointment to the Burnt House Meeting Cemetery Ad-hoc Board-County Council.
Councilman Vaughn motioned to appoint Scott Coleman, second by Vice Chairman Branham.
Vote 6-0 to approve.

10. Executive Session-Councilwoman Guy motioned to go into Executive Session, second by Councilman 
Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.

a. Purpose of discussing Project Magma, Economic Development Project-Attorney Winters.
b. To discuss Economic Development Project 2024-Attorney Winters.

11. Council Actions Following Executive Session
Councilman Vaughn motioned to go back to Regular Session, second by Vice Chairman Branham.
Vote 6-0 to approve.

a. Action taken regarding discussion of Project Magma, Economic Development Project.
Taken as information only.

b. Action taken regarding discussion of Economic Development Project 2024.
Councilman Wilson motioned to assist with the RIA grant for project 2024, second by
Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve. Economic Director Robert Long stated the funds would 
help with the infrastructure of water and sewer to support the project. The grant request was $187,000 
dollars with project 2024 matching $28,000 dollars. 

12. Council Comments
Councilman Wilson said Council should begin to consider allowing a limited number of citizens to 
attend Council meetings. He suggested allowing the first ten people who signs up to attend be permitted 
to attend the meetings.

13. Adjourn
Councilwoman Guy motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to adjourn.TIME: 8:30 PM. 

______________________________________________ 
Karen Lee, Clerk to Council  

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. 
Housing Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified and a notice was posted on the bulletin board 
at the Chester County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

























 

PAGE 1 OF 2 

SOUTH CAROLINA   ) 2021-7  A RESOLUTION OF 
     ) CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
CHESTER COUNTY   ) 

DECLARING PROJECT STATUS UNDER THE 2014 CAPITAL 
PROJECT SALES AND USE TAX REFERENDUM AND THE 
COUNTY’S INTENTION TO ALLOCATE THE REMAINING 
FUNDS; AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, on November 3, 2014, Chester County’s voters approved a capital project sales and use 
tax, according to South Carolina Code Annotated section 4-10-300, et. seq. (“Act”), which authorized 
Chester County to impose a one percent sales and use tax in Chester County for the purpose of funding 
capital project needs in Chester County (“2014 Referendum”); 

WHEREAS, more than five years have passed since voter approval of the 2014 Referendum; 

WHEREAS, more than four years have passed since the last debt issuance related to the 2014 
Referendum; 

WHEREAS, as part of each debt issuance, Chester County was required to make certain representations 
with respect to the speed at which borrowed funds would be expected, which would not reasonably exceed 
three years, as well as other similar representations for shorter periods of expenditures; 

WHEREAS, during the more-than-five years since the 2014 Referendum and four years since the last 
debt issuance related to the 2014 Referendum, several projects have been completed or are expected to be 
completed on or before June 18, 2021 (collectively, “Completed Projects”); 

WHEREAS, Completed Projects are listed on Exhibit A; 

WHEREAS, during the more-than-five years since the 2014 Referendum and four years since the last 
debt issuance related to the 2014 Referendum, several projects failed to meet one or more conditions, 
restrictions, or both related to the use of the sales and use tax revenue collected under the Act, or as 
described in the 2014 Referendum, or both (collectively, “Uncompleted Projects”); 

WHEREAS, for example, Uncompleted Projects failed because of difficulties with, one or more of the 
following: (a) the acquisition of property and right-of-way, (b) design, (c) engineering considerations, (d) 
funding of projects from other sources, (e) bids in excess of project estimates, (f) qualifications of bidders, 
(g) cost overruns, (h) financing costs, (i) exhaustion of net sales and use tax revenues prior to the completion 
of each project in the order and priority stated in the 2014 Referendum, and (j) one or more other unforeseen 
circumstances and conditions (collectively, “Conditions”); 

WHEREAS, Uncompleted Projects were either not substantively commenced, are not expected to be 
completed on or before June 18, 2021, or both (collectively, “Uncompleted Projects”); 

WHEREAS, Uncompleted Projects are listed on Exhibit B; 

WHEREAS, as described in the 2014 Referendum, if any of the Conditions is encountered, then Chester 
County is entitled to move to the next priority project on 2014 Referendum list, then may, but is not required 
to, return to any project passed over; 

WHEREAS, on November 3, 2020, Chester County voters approved a capital project sales and use tax, 
according to the Act, to commence at the conclusion of the sales and use tax approved by the 2014 
Referendum, which authorized Chester County to impose a one percent sales and use tax in Chester County 
for the purpose of funding capital project needs in Chester County, but with a list of projects that varied in 
almost all respects to the list of projects approved by the 2014 Referendum (“2020 Referendum”); and 



 

PAGE 2 OF 2 

         Resolution 2021-7 

 

WHEREAS, as a result, in concert with the will of Chester County’s voters, as provided by the 2014 
Referendum and the 2020 Referendum, and consistent with the concepts contained in the Act, specifically 
section 4-10-340(C)(2), the County intends to use all funds remaining because of the 2014 Referendum as 
funding for the projects approved by the 2020 Referendum. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL: 

1. As of this Resolution’s adoption, Uncompleted Projects are deemed “passed over” and all funds 
not expended for Uncompleted Projects are immediately transferred en masse to the 2020 Referendum to 
be used as funding for the projects approved by the 2020 Referendum in the order of those projects’ priority 
as determined by the 2020 Referendum. 

2. The Interim County Supervisor is directed to provide written notice to each entity responsible for 
each Completed Project, that any funds related to a Completed Project that remain unspent as of June 18, 
2021, that is, any funds for which a remittance from the Chester County Treasurer’s Office has not been 
issued, will be transferred en masse to the 2020 Referendum to be used as funding for the projects approved 
by the 2020 Referendum in the order of those projects’ priority as determined by the 2020 Referendum 

3. On June 19, 2021, all funds not expended (as described in paragraph 2, above) for Completed 
Projects are transferred en masse to the 2020 Referendum to be used as funding for the projects approved 
by the 2020 Referendum in the order of those projects’ priority as determined by the 2020 Referendum. 

4. Each order, resolution, and part of the same in conflict with this Resolution, is, to the extent of that 
conflict, repealed. This Resolution takes effect and is in full force after its adoption by the Chester County 
Council. 

[ONE SIGNATURE PAGE AND TWO EXHIBITS FOLLOWS] 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

  



 

PAGE 3 OF 2 

        Resolution 2021-7 
 
 
Adopted: March 15, 2021 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

        
Interim Chairman/Supervisor 
Chester County Council 

(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

       
Clerk to Council 
  



 

PAGE 4 OF 2 

                                                                  Resolution 2021-7 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
COMPLETED PROJECTS 

002 Construct fire substation Fort Lawn  
003 Construct welcome signs on I-77 at Exit 65 
005 Downtown City of Chester streetscaping  
006 City of Chester park renovation (Finely, Adair, Guy, James, Conner, Brooklyn)  
007 City of Chester wayfinding and entry signs at major entry points 
008 Chester County Museum renovations  
009 Chester School District playground equipment (three elementary schools) 
010 Great Falls basketball and tennis court upgrades  
011 EMS equipment (monitor defibrillators and stretchers) 
012 Joe Collins facility upgrades and field improvements 
013 Wylie Park renovations 
014 Chester War Memorial Building roof renovations  
015 County Health Department roof and meeting room renovations  
016 Great Falls town hall renovations 
017 Department of Juvenile Justice building roof renovation  
018 Family Court Building roof renovation 
019 Emergency Management Agency Federal Building renovations  
020 Voter Registration building roof renovations  
021 Great Falls Fire Station /EMS roof renovations  
022 County Government Complex metal roof renovations  
023 City of Chester City Hall renovations 
024 McKeown Building renovations  
025 Lewis Fire Station renovations and expansion  
026 Chester Sewer District-sewer line from GITI to Lando facility  
027 Install lighting at Rodman Complex baseball fields 1 & 2  
028 Construct two soccer fields with lighting  
031 Install lighting at Republic Field in Great Falls 
032 City of Chester West-End activity center renovations and expansion 
033 City of Chester Fire Department renovations and expansion  
034 Great Falls wastewater treatment plant renovations  
037 Install lighting at Chester Complex Fields 1 through 5 
038 Construct two new softball fields at Chester Complex  
040 Install lighting at Gayle softball field 
041 Construction maintenance facility for County Detention Center  
042 Construct new office building for County animal control 
043 Construct storage facility for County fire coordinator  
044 Construct County Library basement expansion  
045 Great Falls sewer line replacement (Brooklyn Bridge) 
047 City of Chester Public Works facility renovations  
048 Great Falls leaf vacuum  
049 Construct and refurbish City of Chester Sidewalks  
050 City of Chester "Backlot" and amphitheater streetscaping  
051 City of Chester overflow parking lot and retaining wall  
052 City of Chester Evergreen Cemetery improvements 
053 City of Chester Housing Authority common area improvements 
054 Construct City of Chester police substations  
056 Construct and equip City of Chester Public Works yard debris site  

  



 

PAGE 5 OF 2 

                                                     Resolution 2021-7 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
UNCOMPLETED PROJECTS 

001 Construct fire substation North Chester 
004 Construct two helicopter pads near I-77 at Exit 55 and Exit 62 
029 Const. concessions, restrooms, and other facilities at Rodman Complex 
030 Construct baseball/softball with lighting at Rodman Complex  
035 Construct South Chester fire substation restrooms 
036 Const. Lewisville high School concessions, restrooms, and scoreboards  
039 Construct additional restrooms at Chester Complex 
046 Upgrade lighting for Chester and Lewisville High Schools  
055 Chester School District regulation track 
057 Construct athletic field houses for each high school 
058 Chester Technology Park Speculative Building 

 

























 

South Carolina Department of Public Safety 
Office of Highway Safety and Justice 

Programs 
 
 

 
 
 
 

FY 2021 Justice Assistance 
Grant (JAG) Solicitation 

 
 
 
 

 
Release Date:   January 25, 2021 
Applications Due:  March 26, 2021 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



  
 

1 
 

I.  Introduction 
 
The Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program is the primary provider of 
federal criminal justice funding to states and units of local government. The South Carolina 
Department of Public Safety’s Office of Highway Safety and Justice Programs (OHSJP) has been 
designated as the State Administrative Agency (SAA) of the JAG Program for the state of South 
Carolina. The purpose of the JAG Program is to support state agencies and units of local 
government in carrying out specific programs, which offer a high probability of improving the 
criminal justice system. JAG funds may be used to provide additional personnel, equipment, 
supplies, contractual support, training, technical assistance, and information systems for criminal 
justice purposes. Eight authorized federal program areas define the nature and scope of eligible 
programs and projects. The program areas are as follows: 
 

A. Law enforcement programs 
B. Prosecution and court programs 
C. Prevention and education programs 
D. Corrections and community corrections programs 
E. Drug treatment and enforcement programs 
F. Planning, evaluation, and technology improvement programs 
G. Crime victim and witness programs (other than compensation) 
H. Mental health programs and related law enforcement and corrections programs 

 
 
II. Eligible Applicants 
 
The JAG Program is open to state agencies, local units of government, tribal governments, and 
non-profit agencies.  A "local unit of government" is defined as any city, county, town, township 
or other political subdivision of a state. 
 
In addition, the following points should be noted regarding eligible applicants: 
 
A. Police departments, sheriffs' offices and public defender's offices are not eligible to apply 

directly, but would be the implementing agency for the grant.  A city or county would be 
the legal applicant/recipient and manage grant funds on behalf of the implementing 
department or agency. 

 
B. State courts (courts of general jurisdiction) are eligible to apply for funds.  However, local 

courts (magistrate and municipal courts) similar to police departments would have to apply 
through their local units of government. 

 
C. A solicitor's office, for grant purposes, is funded as an office within a lead county. 

 
 The lead county must meet the following requirements: 

 
a. Maintain the financial records for the grant 
b. Include the solicitor's office in its payroll records; and 



  
 

2 
 

c. Include the financial records of the grants to the solicitor's office in its organization-
wide audit. 

 
D. Information for the following individuals will be required on the Grant Application: 

 
a. Project Director – Implementing Agency/Department Head, or person involved in 

the daily operations of the project. 
 

b. Financial Officer - City or County Finance Director, or state agency Chief Financial 
Officer. 

 
c. Official Authorized to Sign - Mayor, City or County Administrator, or state agency 

director. 
 
 
III. Funding Policy 
 
Projects may be funded on a yearly basis for a period not to exceed three years, based on an annual 
evaluation of current-year grant performance. Exceptions to this policy are narcotics 
multijurisdictional task force (NMJTF) projects, and regional multijurisdictional task force 
(RMJTF) projects, which are eligible for a maximum of five years of funding.  However, funding 
for these projects are also considered on a yearly basis, based on an annual evaluation of the 
current-year grant performance and availability of federal funds. There is never a guarantee of 
continuation funding for any program or project.  To expand or enhance an existing program, the 
current level of program activity must be maintained.   
 
 
IV. Distribution of Grant Funds 
 
A minimum of 68.1 percent of South Carolina's entire allocation of JAG grant funds is required to 
be awarded to local programs.  This allocation is referred to as the "variable pass-through 
requirement," and equals the local share of total criminal justice expenditures in the state.  In the 
past, the state has awarded local units of government much more than the minimum amount 
specified by the pass-through requirement. 
 
 
V.  Matching Requirement 
 
Grants made under the JAG program require a 10% cash match (non-federal) of total line-item 
costs.  Federal grant funds cover 90% of the project costs.  The following points should be noted 
regarding the non-federal match: 
 
A. The non-federal portion of the expenditures must be paid in cash. 
 
B. Existing appropriated resources available for drug law enforcement and criminal justice 

system improvement may not be used as matching funds.  The non-federal portion of the 



  
 

3 
 

cost of each program or project shall be in addition to funds that would otherwise be made 
available by the recipient of the grant funds. Federal funds may not be used to supplant 
state or local funds. 

 
C. A state agency or local unit of government can use drug-forfeiture funds as match.  In 

addition, program income generated by prior or existing grants may be used as cash match 
upon proper notification to the Office of Accounting-Grants, S.C. Department of Public 
Safety. 

 
D. Expenditures need to be charged proportionately to the federal and non-federal funds over 

the life of the project with a line-item match. 
 
 
VI. Guidelines for the Use of Grant Funds 
 
A. Allowable Expenses: 
 

1. Personnel, training as a component of an overall program, equipment, and supplies are 
allowable expenses if they are related to the authorized program areas. All expenditures 
must be related to the implementation of an actual program.  This program must be 
defined in the program narrative sections of the application. 

 
2. All grant-funded personnel must have one hundred percent of their time dedicated to 

grant activities (See also all non-supplanting provisions in the Grant Terms and 
Conditions). 

 
B.   Unallowable Expenses: 
 

1. JAG funds may not be used (directly or indirectly) for security enhancements or 
equipment for nongovernmental entities not engaged in criminal justice or public 
safety.  Additionally, JAG funds may not be used (directly or indirectly) to pay for any 
of the following items: 
 
o Vehicles (*excluding police cruisers), vessels (*excluding police boats), or aircraft 

(*excluding police helicopters) 
o Luxury items 
o Real estate 
o Construction projects 
o Any similar items 
 

 * JAG funds may purchase police cruisers (marked or unmarked). For the purposes of this 
grant program, a police cruiser is defined as a vehicle that is used in the ordinary course 
for performing routine patrolling duties. Depending on the jurisdiction, a police cruiser 
could include sedans, sport utility vehicles (SUVs), motorcycles, segways, etc.  The 
purchase of any other police vehicle (e.g., pick-up trucks, passenger vans, command 
centers, etc.) is unallowable.  



  
 

4 
 

 
2. Any expenditure that is not a part of an approved program or project (within the 

authorized program areas) is unallowable. 
 

3. Grant funds may not be used to supplant existing state or local criminal justice funds.  
Any grant expenditures must increase the existing amount of funds available for 
eligible activities. 

 
4. "Buy money" used in narcotics enforcement is an unallowable expense. For example, 

allowing funds to be used by confidential informants involved with a narcotics 
operation is not allowed.  

 
5. JAG funds may not be expended to purchase, lease, rent, or acquire any of the 

following:  ammunition, association fees, vehicle insurance and maintenance. 
 
C.   Financial Requirements 
 

An assurance that JAG funds will not be used to supplant local funding must be provided in 
the application as stated in Grant Terms and Conditions.  This certification attests that federal 
funds will be used to supplement existing funds for program activities, not replace funds 
already appropriated for the same purpose.  Potential supplanting will be the subject of post-
award monitoring and audit.  If there is a potential presence of supplanting, the applicant or 
subgrantee will be required to supply documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-
federal resources occurred for reasons other than the receipt or expected receipt of federal 
funds.  Violations of this requirement can result in recoupment of monies provided under this 
grant in addition to possible civil, and/or criminal penalties. 

 
 
VII. Suspension or Termination of Funding 
 
The SAA may suspend (in whole or in part), terminate funding for, or impose another sanction on 
a subgrantee for any of the following reasons: 
 
A. Failure to comply substantially with the requirements or statutory objectives of the 

Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, as amended, JAG Grant Program 
guidelines issued thereunder, or other provisions of Federal law. 

 
B. Failure to adhere to the standard terms and conditions or special conditions. This includes 

failure to comply with Certifications relating to 8 U.S.C. § 1373 & 1644, and certain other 
federal statutes related to immigration. 

 
C. Implementing substantial program changes to the extent that, if submitted originally, the 

application would not have been approved for funding. 
 
D. Failure to submit reports (programmatic and/or financial) in a timely manner. 
 



  
 

5 
 

E. Filing a false certification in this application or other report or document. 
 
 
VIII. Application and Funding Review Process 
 
All applications, whether new or a continuation, will be reviewed equally by the Office of Highway 
Safety and Justice Programs staff. LATE APPLICATIONS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. 
 
Applications are carefully reviewed to ensure that only projects with a significant chance of 
success are funded. The OHSJP staff use the following criteria in the development of funding 
recommendations for the South Carolina Public Safety Coordinating Council.  
 

A. Documentation of need 
 
1. Program Definition - Any funds requested must be for the implementation of a 

program eligible under one of the program areas.  The program must address the 
activities as identified in the grant area selected. 

 
2. Project Impact - The program should be designed to address the problems and 

needs of the area to be served.  An analysis of how these problems could be 
improved through the project should be shown. 

 
3. Budgetary Review - Each application will be reviewed to ensure costs are 

allowable, reasonable, and allocable. 
 
4. Project Feasibility - Applicants should describe sufficiently and clearly how the 

project will be implemented. 
 

5. Multijurisdictional Cooperation - Where applicable, proposals should indicate 
what type of coordination will be established between the applicant and other 
jurisdictions in the development and implementation of the project.  Written 
agreements should be included where possible. 

 
6. Project Evaluation - Specific, measurable objectives should be presented, and 

each objective MUST be matched with a performance indicator. The 
performance indicators describe how the grant's objectives will be documented 
or monitored. The project evaluation measures the effectiveness of your program 
by comparing your objectives with actual accomplishments. 

 
B. Geographical areas of greatest need 

 
C. Jurisdictions with limited resources 

 
D. Current or past grant performance 

 
E. Probability of success 



  
 

6 
 

 
F. Projects whose goals are self-sufficient within three years 

 
G. Effective utilization of resources 
 
H. Requested grant amount 

 
 
IX. Funding Priorities 
 
The OHSJP has established the following priorities for JAG funding (Priority will be given to 
agencies that do not receive direct JAG awards).  
 

1. Law Enforcement and/or Prosecution and Court Programs that focus on at least 
one of the following: 

a.  Gangs and Violent Crime Investigation/Enforcement 
b. Narcotics 
c.  Domestic Violence 
d. School Resource Officers 

 
2. Equipment/Technology Enhancement(s) that focus on one of the following: 

a.  Officer Safety 
b. Local/State Forensics 

 
3. Mental health and related law enforcement programs that focus on at least one of 

the following: 
a.  Officer Wellness 
b. Crisis Intervention Teams (CITs) 
c.  Behavioral Programs 

 
4. Corrections and Community Corrections Programs 

a.  Diversion/Alternatives to Incarceration Programs 
b. Re-entry/recidivism reduction programs 

 
 

X. Additional Information Requirements and Programmatic Conditions:  
 
A. Multijurisdictional Task Forces 
 

All grant applications for Narcotics, Violent Crime, or Regional Multijurisdictional Task 
Forces MUST include letters of support from all agencies related to or involved in the 
composition, implementation, and operation of the task force, including the solicitor's 
office. These supporting documents are essential for consideration of funding. 
 
Applications for Narcotics, Violent Crime, or Regional Multijurisdictional Task Forces 
MUST also be accompanied by a draft of the written interagency task force agreement (no 



  
 

7 
 

signatures required on draft).  The task force agreement that has been submitted must be 
approved by the OHSJP to ensure all issues regarding personnel, seizures and forfeitures, 
and program income have been addressed. 

 
B. School Resource Officer Programs 
 

All grant applications for School Resource Officer (SRO) Programs MUST include letters 
of support from all agencies and school districts related to or involved in the composition, 
implementation, and operation of the SRO program.   

 
Applications for SRO programs MUST also be accompanied by a draft of the essential 
written interagency agreement between the law enforcement agency and the school district 
(no signatures required on draft). 
 
PLEASE NOTE: should a SRO application be awarded for funding, the award notification 
and the grant effective date will not occur until after the start of the school year.  
Reallocating existing resources to assign a SRO to the school prior to the grant award is 
considered supplanting and will render the application void. 
 

C. Drug Analysis Laboratories 
 

All grant applications for Drug Analysis Laboratories must include a statement indicating 
intent to provide drug analysis services to all law enforcement agencies within the 
respective jurisdictions.  These services should be provided at no cost to the agencies. 
 
Drug Analysis Laboratory applications must also include a detailed statement indicating 
the proposed location of the laboratory, if funded.  In addition, an estimated period for 
completion of any renovation/construction projects needed to house the drug laboratory 
must be included.  Potential applicants should be aware of the South Carolina Department 
of Health and Environmental Control (SCDHEC) and Occupational Health and Safety 
Administration (OSHA) guidelines that govern projects of this type.  Please be reminded 
that costs for renovation or construction are not allowable under JAG guidelines. 

 
D. Body Armor Requirements 
  
 Please be aware that all applicants requesting ballistic-resistant and/or stab-resistant body 

armor must have a written "mandatory wear" policy in place for all uniformed officers. 
There are no requirements regarding the nature of the policy other than it being a mandatory 
wear policy for all uniformed officers while on duty.  Applicants must submit a copy of 
the agency’s “mandatory wear” policy signed by the head of the agency as part of its 
official JAG application.   
 
If your agency participates in the Bulletproof Vest Partnership (BVP), please be aware that 
JAG funds cannot be used to pay for the portion of the body armor (50%) that is not covered 
by the BVP.   
 



  
 

8 
 

Body armor purchased with JAG funds may be purchased at any threat level, make, or 
model, from any distributor or manufacturer, as long as the vests have been tested and 
found to comply with NIJ ballistic or stab standards. In addition, all body armor purchased 
must be made in the United States. 

 
 
XI. Notification Process 
 
Applicants will be notified in writing by the OHSJP whether their application has been approved 
or denied for funding.  Notices of these decisions are tentatively scheduled for publication in 
September/October.  The FY 2021 grant period is currently scheduled for October 1, 2021 – 
September 30, 2022.   
 
 
XII. Application Process-SCDPS Grants 
 
The grant application must be completed using the OHSJP’s web-based grants management 
system, SCDPS Grants. SCDPS Grants can be accessed at https://www.scdpsgrants.com/, as well 
as through the South Carolina Department of Public Safety website at 
http://www.scdps.sc.gov/ohsjp/.  
 
IMPORTANT NOTE: NEW users must submit their subgrantee user registration requests no 
later than Friday, March 12, 2021. 
 
The application must be fully complete and submitted via SCDPS Grants prior to the application 
deadline, which is Friday, March 26, 2021.  Supporting documents, letters of cooperation, and 
appendices relating to the application may be uploaded as attachments to an application on SCDPS 
Grants or forwarded to the address below with the application number written on the 
documents.  Any supporting documentation must be received by the South Carolina Department 
of Public Safety by 5:00 PM on the application due date.  Postmarked dates are not acceptable.  
 
 

Ms. Kayla Boston 

S.C. Department of Public Safety 

Office of Highway Safety and Justice Programs 

Post Office Box 1993 

Blythewood, South Carolina 29016 
 
Please be aware that SCDPS Grants will allow application submissions until 11:59 PM on the 
application due date. However, staff will not be available to assist with application questions after 
5:00 PM. 
 
For programmatic questions, you may contact Amy Free at (803) 896-8708 or Amy Kingston at 
(803) 896-4742. For any financial questions contact Grants-Accounting via email at 
GrantsAccounting@SCDPS.GOV.  
 
 

https://www.scdpsgrants.com/
http://www.scdps.sc.gov/ohsjp/


  
 

9 
 

Grant Application Check List 
 
The following items explain the standards by which each application is evaluated.  Past experience 
has shown that projects are successful because one person or a group of people have identified a 
problem, developed a solution, and carefully designed a plan to arrive at the solution.  The grant 
application leads the grant applicant through a structured approach to problem solving.  Successful 
applicants use these pages to help the reviewer see the problem and easily understand the proposed 
solution. Please note that, if an application is missing any required information or documentation, 
that application may be automatically denied. 
 
      Budget and Description – 

☐  Proposed expenditures are reasonable, adhere to application guidelines 
☐  Equipment/personnel is documented as necessary 
☐  Each expenditure is explained in detail in the budget narrative 

 
Problem Statement – 

☐  The problem and/or need the project will address is defined exactly as it exists in 
your community (focus on the needs of your area and how the project will meet those 
needs) 
☐  Local information and statistics are provided to support the request for funding (do 
not use statewide information alone to support the development of a local level project) 
☐  Existing efforts, current resources, and programs being utilized to deal with the 
problem are thoroughly addressed 

 
Project Purpose – 

☐   At least one distinct purpose/goal has been identified 
☐  Project purpose/goal is S.M.A.R.T. (specific, measureable, achievable, relevant,   
and time-bound) 

 
Project Objectives – 

☐  The objectives are specific and measureable to show how the goal will be achieved 
☐ There is at least one objective per goal listed 

       
       Performance Indicators – 

☐   There is a performance indicator per project objective identified 
☐   Each indicator shows how each objective will be measured and what methods will 
be used to evaluate progress towards achieving the objectives and goals 

 
Training Requirement: 
     ☐  A minimum of two (2) courses identified for grant-funded personnel 
 
 
 
 



  
 

10 
 

Project Evaluation –  
☐   Explain who will examine the project's objectives and performance indicators 
☐   Explain how that person will determine the extent to which the entire project has solved 

the stated problem 
☐     Evaluation is supported by the performance indicators and includes a comprehensive plan 

to provide an overall assessment of project effectiveness 
 
 
Other Relevant Requirements –  
☐  The implementation schedule should contain information on the timing of activities 
☐  The total project area population and number of certified officers (if applicable) must be 
provided and letters of support from all entities involved in multijurisdictional projects should 
be attached 
☐  The name, title, address, phone, and email information must be completed on the online 
application for the Project Director, Financial Officer and Authorized Official.  Signatures will 
only be required once a grant award is made. 
 



Office of the United States Attorney 
District of South Carolina 

 
 

 
Project Safe Neighborhoods  

2021 Grant Solicitation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
OFFICE OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND JUSTICE PROGRAMS 

803) 896-8714 
 

 
 
 

 



Page 1 
 

PROJECT SAFE NEIGHBORHOODS 
 

2021 Application Guidelines and Procedures 
 
 
Introduction 
 
The United States Attorney’s Office for the District of South Carolina has been designated to 
receive funds for the Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) grant program. This program is 
designed to fund innovative projects to reduce gun and gang-related violence. The South 
Carolina Department of Public Safety, Office of Highway Safety and Justice Programs (OHSJP), 
has been designated as the fiscal agent to administer these funds in South Carolina. 
   
This document provides potential applicants with program criteria and eligibility information so 
that formal application proposals may be prepared.  Please contact OHSJP at (803) 896-8707 to 
request technical assistance. 
 
PSN is a nationwide initiative that brings together federal, state, local, and tribal law 
enforcement officials, prosecutors, and community leaders to identify the most pressing violent 
crime problems in our communities and develop comprehensive solutions to address them.  
Additional information on PSN can be obtained by visiting the official program website at 
https://www.justice.gov/psn.   
 
Additional information and resources for PSN can be accessed through the South Carolina 
Department of Public Safety website at https://scdps.sc.gov/ohsjp/cj-grants/safe-neighborhoods.  

 
Eligible Applicants 
 
PSN grant awards may be made to state agencies, local units of government, and non-profit 
agencies.  A “local unit of government” is defined as any city, county, town, township, or other 
general purpose political subdivision of a state.  
 
In addition, the following points should be noted regarding eligible applicants: 
 
A. Police Departments, Sheriffs’ Offices, and Public Defenders’ offices are not eligible to 

apply directly, but would be the implementing agency for the grant. A city or county 
would be the legal applicant/recipient and manage grant funds on behalf of the 
implementing department or agency. 

 
B. State courts (Courts of General Sessions) are eligible to apply for funds.  However, local 

courts (magistrate and municipal courts), similar to police departments, would have to 
apply through their local units of government. 

 
C. A Solicitor’s Office, for grant purposes, is funded as an office within a lead county. The 

lead county must meet the following requirements: 
a. Maintain the financial records for the grant; 
b. Include the Solicitor’s Office in its payroll records; and 
c. Include the financial records of the grants to the Solicitor’s Office in its 

organization-wide audit. 



 

Page 2 
 

D. Information for the following individuals will be required on the grant application: 
a. Project Director – Implementing Agency/Department Head or person 

involved in the daily operations of the project. 
b. Financial Officer – City or County Finance Director or state agency Chief 

Financial Officer; and 
c. Official Authorized to Sign – Mayor, City or County Administrator, or state 

agency director 
 
Funding Policies  
 

A. Programs funded under PSN must be 12 months in length (October 1, 2021 – 
September 30, 2022). Note: second or subsequent year funding is not guaranteed. 
New and continuation projects will compete equally each year. In such a 
competitive environment, “need” and the use of effective data-driven strategies 
will be key factors for funding selections, in addition to evaluating performance 
results. 

 
B. All subgrantees will agree to abide by all applicable guidelines, including grant 

terms and conditions and any special conditions.  
 

C. PSN funds can be used to fund salaries and fringe benefits, necessary equipment, 
contractual services when applicable, travel and training costs, and other needed 
supplies. 

 

 
Funding Priorities 

 
The overall goal for this initiative is to promote safe communities across the state through the 
reduction of gun violence and gang activity, with special focus on areas with increased rates of 
violent crime/gang activity. Toward that goal, the program seeks to fund projects that will 
enhance progress toward the below priorities. However, innovative projects outside of these 
priorities, which are aimed at reducing firearm and gang violence, will also be considered. 
 

1.   Gun and Gang Crime Investigation/Suppression: Programs (or task forces) to 
target perpetrators of gun and gang-related crimes. This can include the illegal 
possession of firearms, the illegal sale of guns, or other crimes committed to 
benefit a “gang.”  Multi-agency cooperation should be demonstrated (e.g., both 
state and federal involvement). 

 
2.   Firearms Analysis: Programs that should enhance and provide support for state 

and local law enforcement agencies that analyze firearms and ballistic evidence 
(including NIBIN analysis and tracing of firearms). 

 
3.   Data Analysis/Research Partner: Programs designed to assess and validate the 

nature and extent of gun crime, gang activity, and gang membership in South 
Carolina. Data analysis to identify the drivers of violent crime and assess the 
effectiveness of an agency’s violent crime reduction plan. 

 



 

Page 3 
 

4.    Prevention and Reentry Programs: Programs dedicated to violent crime 
prevention and the identification of persons at high risk of offending (e.g., 
educational, faith-based, community-oriented, outreach, etc.). Programs dedicated 
to the successful reentry of offenders with housing, educational, and vocational 
partnerships. 

 
Matching Requirement 

Funding will provide for 100% of project costs. No cash or in-kind match will be required. 
 
Guidelines for the Use of Grant Funds 
 
A. Allowable Expenses: 
 

1. Personnel, training as a component of an overall program, equipment, and supplies 
are allowable expenses.  All expenditures must be related to the implementation of an 
actual program.  This program must be defined in the program narrative sections of 
the application. 

 
2. All grant-funded personnel must have 100% of their time dedicated to grant 

activities. (See non-supplanting provisions in the Grant Terms and Conditions.) 
 
B. Unallowable Expenses: 
 

1. Any expenditure that is not a part of an approved program or project is unallowable. 
 

2. Grant funds may not be used to supplant existing state or local criminal justice funds.  
Any grant expenditures must increase the existing amount of funds available for 
eligible activities. 

 
3. “Buy money” used in drug enforcement is an unallowable expense. 

 
4. Funds may not be expended to purchase, lease, rent, or acquire ammunition, 

association fees, vehicle insurance, and maintenance. 
 

C.   Financial Requirements: 
 
An assurance that funds will not be used to supplant local funding must be provided in the 
application as stated in Grant Terms and Conditions.  This certification attests that federal 
funds will be used to supplement existing funds for program activities, not replace funds 
already appropriated for the same purpose.  Potential supplanting will be the subject of post-
award monitoring and audit.  If there is a potential presence of supplanting, the applicant or 
subgrantee will be required to supply documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-
federal resources occurred for reasons other than the receipt or expected receipt of federal 
funds.  Violations of this requirement can result in recoupment of monies provided under this 
grant, in addition to possible civil and/or criminal penalties. 
 



 

Page 4 
 

Suspension or Termination of Funding 
 
The fiscal agent may suspend (in whole or in part), terminate funding for, or impose another 
sanction on a subgrantee for any of the following behavior: 
 
A. Failure to adhere to the standard terms and conditions or special conditions.  
 
B. Implementing substantial program changes to the extent that, if submitted originally, the 

application would not have been approved for funding. 
 
C. Failure to submit reports (programmatic and/or financial) in a timely manner. 
 
D.        Filing a false certification in this application or other report or document. 
 

 
Application Review Process 
 
All FY2021 applications will be reviewed by the OHSJP for technical sufficiency and will then 
be reviewed by the members of the PSN Selection Committee. Chosen by the USAO, the 
committee is comprised of individuals from across the state that represent law enforcement and 
prosecutorial agencies. The individuals who evaluate the applications cannot play a role in the 
production of all or part of any application, nor can they be employed by the federal government 
or by an applicant, in order to ensure that there is no conflict of interest. Once the review is 
completed, the PSN Selection Committee’s recommendations will be forwarded to the USAO 
before submission to the Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) for final approval. The OHSJP and 
PSN Selection Committee will evaluate applications based on the following criteria: 
 
A. Design quality of the proposal 
 

1. Project Impact - The program should be designed to address the problems and 
needs of the area to be served. An analysis of how these problems could be 
improved through the project should be shown. 

 
2. Budgetary Review - Each application will be reviewed to ensure budgetary 

reasonableness and affordability of costs. 
 
3. Project Feasibility - Applicants should clearly and sufficiently detail how the 

project will be implemented. 
 

4. Multi-jurisdictional Cooperation - Where applicable, proposals should indicate 
what type of coordination will be established between the applicant and other 
jurisdictions in the development and implementation of the project.  Written 
agreements should be included where possible. 

 
5. Project Evaluation - Simple, specific, and measurable objectives should be 

presented, and each objective must be matched with a performance indicator.  
The performance indicators describe how the grant’s objectives will be 



 

Page 5 
 

documented or monitored. Evaluation measures the effectiveness of your 
program by comparing your objectives with actual accomplishments. 

 
B. Geographic areas of greatest need 
 

 Jurisdictions with highest reported Violent Crime Rates - While the PSN Strategy 
expands throughout the entire state, special emphasis will be placed on the four 
Target Enforcement Areas (TEAs) listed below: 
 

• Columbia 
 

• Charleston/North Charleston 
 

• Myrtle Beach 
 

• Greenville/Spartanburg    
 
C. Jurisdictions with limited resources 
 
D. Probability of success 
 
E. Effective utilization of resources 
 
F.   Requested grant amounts (if an agency has an ability and is willing to cover part of the cost 
of their grant project, please so note in the Budget Narrative section of the application) 
 

 
Application Submission Requirements  
 
Required Information Regarding Communication with the Department of Homeland 
Security (DHS) and/or Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) (Appendix A) 
 
Each applicant must complete and submit Appendix A as an attachment to the application, which 
requires responses to the following questions: 
 

1. Does your jurisdiction have any laws, policies, or practices related to whether, 
when, or how employees may communicate with DHS or ICE? 
 

2. Is your jurisdiction subject to any laws from a superior political entity (e.g., a 
state law that binds a city) that meet the description in Question 1? 
 

3. If yes to either of the above questions: 

• Please provide a copy of each law or policy; 
• Please describe each practice; and 
• Please explain how the law, policy, or practice complies with Section 

1373. 
 

NOTE: This document is a required attachment to an applicant’s PSN application. All 
attachments must be received by the application deadline. See the below section, 
“Application Process-SCDPS Grants.” 



 

Page 6 
 

Notification Process 
 
Applicants will be notified in writing by the OHSJP whether their application has been approved 
for funding or has been denied funding.  Notices of these decisions are tentatively scheduled for 
publication in July 2021.  The FY 2021 grant period is currently scheduled for October 1, 2021 – 
September 30, 2022.   
 
Application Process - SCDPS Grants 
 
The grant application must be completed using the OHSJP’s web-based grants management 
system, “SCDPS Grants.” SCDPS Grants can be accessed at https://www.scdpsgrants.com/, as 
well as through the SCDPS website at http://www.scdps.sc.gov/ohsjp/.  
 
IMPORTANT NOTE: new users must submit their subgrantee user registration requests 
no later than Friday, April 2, 2021. 
 
The application and required attachments must be fully complete and submitted via SCDPS 
Grants prior to the application deadline, which is Friday, April 16, 2021.   
 
Supporting documents, letters of cooperation, and required appendices relating to the application 
may be uploaded as attachments to an application on SCDPS Grants or forwarded to the address 
below with the application number written on the documents.  
 
Any supporting documentation that is being mailed must be received by the South Carolina 
Department of Public Safety by April 16, 2021, at 5:00 PM.  Postmarked dates are not 
acceptable.  
 

Ms. Kayla Boston 
S.C. Department of Public Safety 

Office of Highway Safety and Justice Programs 
Post Office Box 1993 

Blythewood, South Carolina 29016 
 

Please be aware that SCDPS Grants will allow application submissions until 11:59 PM on the 
application due date. However, staff will not be available to assist with application questions 
after 5:00 PM. 
 
For programmatic questions, you may contact the OHSJP at (803) 896-8707. Contact 
Accounting-Grants for any financial questions at GrantsAccounting@SCDPS.GOV.



 

 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Information regarding communication with the Department of 
Homeland Security (DHS) and/or Immigration and Customs 

Enforcement (ICE) Form 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
        OFFICE OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND JUSTICE PROGRAMS 

  

 
Information Regarding Communication with the Department of Homeland 
Security (DHS) and/or Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) 

 
Application Number: __________________________ 
 
Application Title: _____________________________ 
 
Agency Name: ___________________________ 
 
Address: ________________________________ 
 
City, State & Zip: ________________________ 
 
Question 1: Does your jurisdiction have any laws, policies, or practices related to whether, 
when, or how employees may communicate with DHS or ICE?           (  ) YES    (  ) NO 
 
Question 2: Is your jurisdiction subject to any laws from a superior political entity (e.g., a 
state law that binds a city) that meet the description of Question 1?    (  ) YES    (  ) NO 
 
If yes to either: 
 Please provide a copy of each law and/or policy. 
 Please describe each practice below. 
 Please explain how the law, policy, and/or practice complies with Section 1373.  
 
 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
_______________________________    ________________________ 
Signature of Project Director      Date 









Willie F Baxter


	1.  3-15-2021 CCTC Agenda
	2.  1-19-2021 CCTC Minutes
	3.  Britt Lane - Mitigation Estimate
	Cost Repair+mitigation

	4.  Douglas Circle and Washington Street sidewalks_2021-03-12-121832411
	5.  Shirley Road_2021-03-12-163252675
	6.  Deer Branch Road_2021-03-12-163352451
	7.  3-15-2021 Agenda
	8. 3-1-2021 Council Minutes
	9.  Needs And Assessment _2021-02-25-083945728
	10.  2021-7  FINAL Resolution closing out 2014 CPST Referendum (ver4 2021.02.24)
	11.  heart and soul
	12.  Litter Pickup and Tickets_2021-03-12-100823941
	13.  Radio Committee-E911 Recorder-E911 Changes
	14.  Body Worn Camera Storage
	15.  2021 OHSJP JAG Solicitation
	16.  2021 Project Safe Neighborhoods Solicitation
	17.  Marty Roberts- Hazel Pittman Board_2021-03-10-094204205
	18.  Bud Delgouffre Fort Lawn Fire Protection Resignation Letter_2021-03-10-093508540
	19.  Willie Baxter- Radio Advisory Committee Application_2021-03-12-154711143



